
 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 18, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2  
 

 

 

.. 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

November 18, 2015 
Closed Session 6:15 PM  ·  Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM 

 

 

1) CONVENE CLOSED SESSION_______________________________________________________________ 
1A. Call to Order 
1B. Roll Call 
1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 
1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Conference with Labor Negotiators pursuant To Government Code Section 54957.6 Employee 
Organization: General Employees and Bargaining Unit Represented by Operating Engineers, Local 39 
City's Designated Representative:  Mark Miller 
 

2) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________ 
2A. Pledge of Allegiance 
2B. Report from Closed Session 
2C. Roll Call 
2D. Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change 
to the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 

3) PRESENTATIONS_                                        _______________________________________________________ 
3A. Winterfest Update 
 Gary Howard, Kelly Molloy– Event Organizers 
 

4) CONSENT CALENDAR_________ ___________________________________________________________ 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion with a 
roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request specific items to be removed from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed will be considered after the motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
4A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of October 28, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 28, 2015. 
4B. Cash Summary Report October 2015 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File 
4C. Whitcomb Avenue Fair Share Agreement – Parcel F 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Review and Approve 
 

5) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues discussed at 
committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. If a member of the 
Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be placed on a future Council 
meeting agenda. 

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items - All Councilmembers 
5B. City Operations Update – City staff 
5C. Additional Reports – Agency partners 
 
 



 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

November 18, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2  
 

6) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the 
subject jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as 
possible. Comments should not exceed three (3) minutes in length. The Council cannot act on items not included 
on this agenda; however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 
 

7) PUBLIC HEARING      _____________________________________________________________________ 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: City Council will take the following actions when considering a matter scheduled for hearing: 

1. Open the public hearing 2. Presentation by staff 

3. Council comments and questions 4. Presentation, when applicable, by applicant or appellant 

5. Accept public testimony 6. Council comments and questions 

7. When applicable, applicant or appellant rebuttal period 8. Close public hearing. (No public comment is taken after the hearing is closed.) 

9. City Council or Planning Commission action  

Public hearings that are continued will be announced. The continued public hearing will be listed on a subsequent Council Meeting Agenda and posting of 
that agenda will serve as notice. 

The City Council encourages the participation of the public. To ensure the expression of all points of view, and to maintain the efficient conduct of the City’s 
business, members of the public who wish to address the Council shall do so in an orderly manner.  The audience is asked to refrain from positive or 
negative actions such as yelling, clapping or jeering that may intimidate other members of the public from speaking.  Members of the public wishing to 
speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand, and stepping to the podium when requested to do so. 
 

7A. Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance № 527: An Ordinance of the City of Colfax Amending 
Section 2.04.020C of The Colfax Municipal Code Regarding Filling Vacancies on the City Council. 
STAFF PRESENTATION: Mick Cabral, City Attorney 
RECOMMENDATIONS: Introduce Ordinance № 527 for first reading by title only and schedule for second 
reading public hearing and adoption at the December 9, 2015 regularly scheduled City Council meeting. 

 

8) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
8A. Solid Waste Franchise - Recology 
 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION: Review Current Agreement and Direct Staff as Appropriate 
8B. Recommendation from Circulation Element/General Plan Committee  

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive Report and Direct Staff as Appropriate 

8C. Update on Status of the Historic Colfax Hotel Nuisance Abatement 
 STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
 RECOMMENDATION:  Receive Verbal Update from City Manager 
 

9) ADJOURNMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 

at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 



City of Colfax 1 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

City of Colfax 

City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting of Wednesday, October 28, 2015 

City Hall Council Chambers 

33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

 

1 CALL CLOSED SESSION TO ORDER 
 

1A. Mayor Douglas called the meeting to order at 6:15PM. 

1B. Roll Call 

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Hesch, Parnham and Stockwin 

Excused absence:  Harvey 

1C. Public Comment – Closed Session Items 

No public comment 

1D. Closed Session Agenda 

Potential Real Estate Negotiations 

Property: APN 101-132-018 – Winner Chevrolet 

Council convened to Close Session. 
 

2 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
 

The Open Session of the Regular Council Meeting was called to order at 7:00PM by 

Mayor Douglass.  

2A. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Jim Dion, Owner of the Colfax Theater. 

2B. Mayor Douglass stated that the closed session covered contract negotiations and 

there was no reportable action taken. 

2C. Roll Call:  

Councilmembers present:  Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, and Stockwin 

Absent:  Harvey 

2D. Approval of Agenda: 

On a motion by Councilmember Stockwin, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, 

the City Council approved the agenda. 

AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT: Harvey 
 

3 PRESENTATIONS 
 

3A. Council Certificate of Appreciation to Gunda Pramuk, Colfax Library 

Branch Manager 

Mayor Douglass expressed the sentiments of many people in town including patrons of 

the library, co-workers at the library, councilmembers, Ms. Pramuk’s supervisor and 

himself.  Ms. Pramuk will be missed for her great customer service, positive outlook and 

wonderful children’s activities. He presented Ms. Pramuk with a Certificate of 

Appreciation from the City Council.   

City Manager Miller presented her with a book to be donated to the library in her honor. 

 

 

ITEM 4A
1 of 8



City of Colfax 2 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

3B. Presentation of Recent Air Quality Trends in Colfax  

Councilmember Hesch gave a PowerPoint presentation regarding trends in air quality for 

the City of Colfax. The data from the Placer County Air Quality Control Board 

demonstrates overall trends in air quality are positive for the 15 years that have been 

measured. State and federal requirements for air quality are becoming increasingly 

stringent and even with the marked improvement in air quality our region has not met the 

standards.   Lowering air pollutants to the next level will be inconvenient and expensive.   

Currently, municipalities are not being penalized for falling short of state and federal air 

quality standards. In the future, financial penalties could be assessed. 

Jeannie Claxton, 285 Alpine Way, asked if Colfax is held to the same standards even 

with the railroad and highway running through town.   

Councilmember Hesch replied that the standards are the same across the board, no 

exceptions are made.  However, the main influences on Colfax air quality are temperature 

inversions in the winter months which trap air and allow pollutants to build up. 

Jim Dion asked what citizens can do to lower air pollution. 

Councilmember Hesch explained that there is little that an individual can do other than 

drive less frequently.   
 

4 CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

4A.  Minutes of the City Council Meeting of October 14, 2015 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 

14, 2015. 

4B. Cash Summary Report September 2015 

 RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File 

4C. Appoint Will Stockwin to the Placer Sierra Fire Safe Council and the 

Weimar-Applegate-Colfax Municipal Advisory Committee (WACMAC) 

RECOMMENDATION:  Appoint Councilmember Stockwin to represent the 

City of Colfax on the Placer Sierra Fire Safe Council and WACMAC. 

4D. Quarterly Investment Report 

 RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and File. 

On a motion by Councilmember Hesch seconded by Councilmember Stockwin, the 

City Council approved the Consent Calendar. 

AYES:  Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:  None 

ABSENT: Harvey 
 

5 COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS 
 

5A. Committee Reports and Informational Items – All Council Members  

Councilmember Hesch 

 Councilmember Hesch read a letter from Malcolm Frost, president of the Placer 

Sierra Historic Railroad Society (attached).  Mr. Frost wrote on behalf of his 

organization explaining that the club will not be organizing a Railroad Days 

celebration in 2016, but will consider taking part in a 2017 event.  Councilmember 

Hesch explained that Mr. Frost had hoped to speak in person but was unable to 

attend the meeting due to a previous engagement. 

ITEM 4A
2 of 8



City of Colfax 3 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

 Councilmember Hesch reported the idea of housing a skate park in the old fruit 

sheds is not feasible due to the costs of rehabilitating the building to usable 

standards as it needs a new roof and will need asbestos removed.   

 He mentioned that the Winterfest Celebration is only 5 weeks away and the 

organizers need $5000 for the fireworks.  He encouraged the community to donate 

and support the fundraising efforts  

 He requested that staff consider increasing the budgeted $500 amount the City 

traditionally gives for Winterfest to $5000 and report back to Council if it would 

be possible. 

 Placer County Transportation Planning Agency (PCTPA) is considering increasing 

additional funding for road improvements and transportation funding with a half-

cent sales tax.  PCTPA will have a meeting at Colfax High School next week on 

November 4, 2015 at 6PM.  Please attend the meeting to give your feedback to 

PCTPA.  The funds from the tax will be available for the City especially since 

Colfax is the only place in Placer County with roads which are rated poor. 

 Look for information regarding a Ribbon Cutting by PCTPA for the Canyon Way 

interchange improvement which was recently finished with grant funds.  Thanks 

go to the governor, PCTPA and Crispin Cider for getting the funds to improve that 

interchange. 

 He requested that Staff determine if the fire sprinkler system in the hotel is 

functioning and if not to be sure that it is activated. 

Councilmember Stockwin 

 Stated that as the new City representative to the Weimar-Applegate-Colfax 

Municipal Advisory Council (WACMAC) and the Fire Safe Council he will begin 

attending those meetings and report back to Council. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham 

 Attended the Mosquito Abatement Board meeting with nothing to report pertaining 

to Colfax. 

 Mentioned that the Hotel owner seems to have abandoned RV’s in the back of 

their lot.  These will need to be added to the abatement list if they are not removed. 

Mayor Douglass 

 Attended a Project Go meeting.  Funds are allocated to citizens of Colfax for 

weatherization projects. 

 Attend the Placer County Economic Development meeting in Squaw Valley.  

Squaw Valley is looking at essentially doubling in size. 

 Attended the Lion’s Club monthly meeting.  He stated that the more service clubs 

can partner and work together, the more effective they all will be.  He encouraged 

citizens to join one of the service clubs and help them accomplish even more.  

 Attended the Placer County City/County Officials dinner at the High Hand 

Nursery in Loomis.  The Speaker’s topic was how to turn an old fruit shed into a 

thriving business. 

 The Sierra Vista Community Center is making progress toward ADA compliance. 

 He attended the Elementary School Harvest Festival to encourage a continued 

partnership with the City and the school. 

 

ITEM 4A
3 of 8



City of Colfax 4 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

5B. Operations Updates – City Staff 

City Manager Miller  

 Stated that the new Maintenance Worker I, Michael Gatto, is on board.  Chief 

Plant Operator interviews will be held Friday. 

 He encouraged everyone to attend the November 4, 2015 Town Hall Meeting at 

the High School to give input to PCTPA regarding funding for transportation 

needs.  The meeting will be from 6PM to 8PM. 

 The St. Crispin’s Day Festival will be next Saturday, November 7, 2015 at the 

SVCC.  Crispin Cider is sponsoring the event to benefit the Fire Department. 

 The next Council Meeting will be changed to November 18 due to the Veterans 

Day holiday. 

 New Council committee assignments will be made in January.  The Mayor 

suggests that any Councilmember who wishes to take on a new assignment sit in 

on some of the meetings of those boards between now and the end of the year to 

get a feel for the boards. 

 The Wastewater Facility is running well and is online. 

 The San Francisco Art Institute Class Workshop will be held in Colfax.  Foxey 

McCleary will give more details. 

 There has been no significant progress in the abatement of the Hotel public 

nuisance.  The City will send a 15-day or takeover notice of the abatement to the 

property owner this week.  He passed out a draft notice which the attorney will 

amend before posting and sending to the property owner. 
 

5C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 

Foxey Mc Cleary – Artistic Agency Partner 

 Announced that an economic development team through the Art Institute will visit 

businesses in Colfax and hold a workshop on November 7 in the Art Room at the 

SVCC from 11-4PM.  The team will choose a project for City improvements and 

design an implementation plan free of charge.  She encouraged Council and the 

public to attend the workshop.  This group has worked on projects throughout the 

world with great success.  
 

6  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Ian Molloy 

 Suggested the area behind the Splash Park as a location for a Skate Park.  He 

intends to organize a fundraiser in the spring for a new park. 

Daniel Crenshaw 

 Suggested that the City place a train or replica of a train on the highway corridor to 

encourage folks to visit downtown Colfax.  If a train is not feasible near the 

highway off-ramp, perhaps a billboard could be erected that would increase visits 

to the downtown. 

Jeannie Claxton, 285 Alpine Way 

 Congratulated Councilmember Stockwin on his appointment to City Council. 

ITEM 4A
4 of 8



City of Colfax 5 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

 She expressed excitement about the fireworks being part the Winterfest 

Celebration, but concern that she hasn’t seen much advertisement or notice in the 

paper. 

 Ms. Claxton reported that she had a great interaction with one of the local Union 

Pacific Railroad (UPRR) employees, Fred Garcia.  Not only did he accompany her 

to an abandoned UPRR track so that she and her team could clean up a homeless 

camp, he contributed significantly to bagging and loading of the camp debris. 

 She announced that she and her team will be cleaning up another homeless camp 

behind Dr. Fox’s office on Friday at 9:00AM.  She encouraged everyone to 

participate in the clean-up and in monitoring the location to prevent the site from 

being reused.   
 

7 COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

7A. Request for approval of two Welcome to Colfax signs. 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 

RECOMMENDATION:  Move to approve design, purchase and installation of 

“Welcome to Colfax” signs for the two major entrances to town. 

City Manager Miller reminded Council of previous conversations about the lack of 

connection between Highway 174, Highway I-80, and Downtown.  The Hwy 174 sign to 

N. Main Street for travelers from Grass Valley is barely visible and the link from I-80 is 

confusing.  The owners of “Back to the Drawing Board”, a nationally renowned sign 

company, live near Colfax and have designed a 4x8 3-dimensional sign to vividly mark 

the entrances into town.  The sign company has agreed to build 2 signs, essentially at cost 

– about $2500 each – and to sign over rights to the artwork.   

Councilmember Stockwin stated that he likes the artwork but mentioned we do have 

other signs along S. Auburn.  He feels the artwork would be more appropriate if a steam 

engine were actually on display in the downtown. 

City Manager Miller commented that the steam engine on the sign is stylized similarly to 

the train-shaped plant hangers on downtown lampposts and gives homage to the history 

of Colfax. 

Mayor Douglass stated that we need both the engine and the sign! 

Councilmember Hesch stated that he is in favor of the sign. He has been assured the signs 

will be UV protected and color fast.  They need to last a long time. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham agreed that a sign along S. Auburn would be helpful. 

Foxey McCleary stated that placement of the sign could be a project for the economic 

development group that the art group is bringing into town. 

Jeannie Claxton likes the idea of the sign better than a billboard. 

On a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Parnham, seconded by Councilmember Hesch, the 

City Council agreed to purchase two signs from Back to the Drawing Board for 

approximately $5000. 

AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT: Harvey 

 

 
 

ITEM 4A
5 of 8



City of Colfax 6 

City Council Minutes October 14, 2015 

 

7B.  Update from Circulation Element/General Plan Committee  

PROGRESS REPORT FROM OCTOBER 16 MEETING: Councilmembers 

Steve Harvey, Tony Hesch 

RECOMMENDATION: Verbal Report for Information Only 

City Manager Miller stated the most recent Committee meeting reviewed the history of 

changes to the general plan and the items which are overdue for updating in the capital 

improvement plan.  The committee has two goals:  make it easier for new businesses 

come into town and update the Capital improvement plan.  The committee is scheduled to 

meet again on November 3, 2015 at 9:00AM. 

Councilmember Hesch stated that the City has engaged a private engineering firm to do a 

preliminary study regarding the feasibility of a roundabout in town. 

Foxey McCleary asked where the roundabout is proposed. 

City Manager Miller explained that a roundabout has not been proposed, but the 

committee is looking at what is feasible.  The General Plan currently denotes a traffic 

signal in front of McDonalds.  The committee wants to determine if there is a less 

expensive way to regulate traffic at that location.   

Councilmember Hesch explained that in order to develop certain properties, the City 

must know if a project is feasible.  The single biggest obstacle to new development is the 

current General Plan.  Development is not possible without a better plan.   
 

A member of the public asked if Council responds to comments or suggestions from the 

public at the next meeting. 

Mayor Pro Tem Parnham stated that Council appreciates the time the public invests in 

attending meetings.  The public is not wasting ideas or words.   

City Manager Miller stated Council does respond at a future meeting to items that are 

within the purview of City Council. 

Councilmember Hesch noted that this Council has worked hard to ensure that Staff and 

Council are responsive to the public. 
 

9 ADJOURNMENT 
 

Councilmember Stockwin moved and Mayor Pro Tem Parnham seconded 

adjournment of the City Council meeting.  

AYES:   Douglass, Hesch, Parnham, Stockwin 

NOES:   None 

ABSENT: Harvey 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:15PM. 
 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 18
th

 day of November, 2015 

 

 

ITEM 4A
6 of 8



P l a c e r-S i e r r a  R a i l r o a d  H e r i t a g e  S o c i e t y 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P.O. BOX 1776  psrhs.org 
COLFAX, CA 95713  501(c)3  

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Preserving Railroad History along the Donner Pass Route 

 

City Council 

City of Colfax 

33 S Main St 

Colfax, CA  95713 

 

Dear Members 

 

On behalf of the entire membership of the Placer-Sierra Railroad Heritage Society (PSRHS), 

we want to thank you for the opportunity to help organize the 2015 Colfax Railroad Days 

Event.  It was an honor to help celebrate the city’s 150th Birthday. 

 

A little over two weeks ago we held a review meeting to create a better picture of the event 

and to ask how it can be improved.  I would like to share a few highlights:   

 There were several new exhibits, things for kids to do and vendors as result of a 

significant increase in efforts by the volunteers and committee.    

 All estimates show attendance about 20% lower than last year.   This was attributed a 

large part to the smoky conditions as a result of regional forest fires.   

 Holding the event on the second weekend of the month was suggested to be in 

competition with other local events.  The focus was to hold the event as close to the 

original date of the town’s inception.  Holding the event on the third weekend in 

September should be reconsidered. 

 The use of road side advertising was found to be significantly effective.  Advertising is 

always difficult & expensive and needs to take a higher priority.  

 Overall impression from guests was again very favorable and several local business 

reported significant increases in revenue for the period. 

 Net outcome for the Society was a loss of approximately $500.00 

 

On October 22nd the Board of Directors of PSRHS held a meeting to review the event and the 

Society’s participation in possible future events.   A survey of the volunteers and Board 

Members led us to the conclusion that we do not possess the depth of personnel to 

immediately start planning an event for next year.  In light of that we shall not file for a use 

permit.  We felt it important that the City know our position as soon as possible to allow the 

City to take advantage of other opportunities.  

 

ITEM 4A
7 of 8



 

 

The Board was collectively disappointed to remove the Society as the chief organizer but at 

the same time committed to reviewing the possibilities for a 2017 event.  There was also 

considerable interest in a 2019 event which coincides with 150th Anniversary of the 

completion of the Transcontinental Railroad at Promontory Point. 

 

You may direct any questions you have to me.  I will be happy answer them individually or 

should the council prefer, make myself available for a future council meeting. 

 

Again thank you for the opportunity to serve the Community of Colfax. 

 

 

 

Malcolm Frost,  

President 

 

ITEM 4A
8 of 8



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE NOVEMBER 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE: November 4, 2015 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: October 2015 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report October 2015. 

SUMMARY: 
Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Cash Summary Report for October 2015. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of Colfax 
Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a cash basis and 
are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports and bank statements.  Detailed 
budget comparisons are provided as a mid-year report and also as part of the proposed budget process each 
year. 
 

The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in October 2015.   
 

Monthly highlights include: 

 General Fund Reserved Cash is tracking consistently with previous years and our General Fund Reserve 
balance has been met consistently for the past nine months. 

 October expenditures included: 
o Quarterly payment for Fire Services - $6,700 

o Quarterly payments (2) for Animal Control Services - $13,200 

o Quarterly payment for Workers Compensation insurance - $9,300 

 Negative fund balances in Restricted and Capital Funds are due to timing of funding allocations and 
reimbursements.  Both Fund 218 and Fund 250 typically are funded later in the fiscal year and full 
funding is anticipated.  Capital Fund 350 (UPPR Ped Xing Project) has anticipated reimbursement funding 
of $300,000, but also additional payments to Contractor and Union Pacific are still anticipated.

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports  
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  
d. Daily Cash Summary Report 

ITEM 4B
1 of 11



ITEM 4B
2 of 11



ITEM 4B
3 of 11



ITEM 4B
4 of 11



ITEM 4B
5 of 11



ITEM 4B
6 of 11



ITEM 4B
7 of 11



ITEM 4B
8 of 11



ITEM 4B
9 of 11



ITEM 4B
10 of 11



ITEM 4B
11 of 11



 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: November 12, 2015 

SUBJECT: Whitcomb Avenue Fair Share Agreement – Parcel F 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review and Approve 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

The Whitcomb Avenue Industrial Park infrastructure improvements were paid for with public funds and 
have a cost sharing agreement that requires repayment upon development of the participating parcels. 
Ordinance No. 466 establishes the fair share payment and process. 
 
The new owner of Parcel F has requested to enter into an agreement with the City to make these payments 
(totaling $73,923 plus interest) semi-annually for 10 years. Staff is supportive of this schedule. The attached 
agreement was drafted by the planning director and reviewed and approved by the City Manager and City 
Attorney.   
 
The proposed agreement is attached for your review and approval along with a map outlining the subject 
parcel location.  
 
 

 
 
Attachments: 

a. Map of Parcel 
b. Proposed Agreement 

ITEM 4C
1 of 6



ITEM 4C
2 of 6



 

         
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

 AGREEMENT FIXING FAIR SHARE PAYMENT SCHEDULE TO BE PAID BY OWNER 

 

This agreement is made between the City of Colfax, a California General Law City (“City”) and 

________________________________________________ (”Owner”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. City has provided for the construction of public infrastructure improvements located 

within the Colfax Industrial Park, on Whitcomb Avenue. 

 

 

B. Owner is the owner of one parcel of property, which will benefit from the Public 

Improvements constructed by City.  Owner’s parcel consists of approximately three (3) 

acres and is identified as Placer County Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN) 100-230-013 

(the “Property”). Owner’s property equals 16.2 percent of the area that will benefit from 

the Public Improvements. 

 

C. In recognition of the benefits Owner’s property will receive from the Public 

Improvements, including but not limited to sanitary sewer lines, water lines, drainage, 

electrical and communications, and street extension improvements consisting of 

pavement, curb and gutter, the parties wish to fix and determine the fair share 

improvement costs to be allocated to the Owner and to be reimbursed by the Owner to the 

City in accord with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

  

Recording Request by: 

City of Colfax 

When recorded return to: 

 

CITY OF COLFAX 

PO BOX 702 

COLFAX, CA 95713 

Attn:  City Clerk 

 

 

Attention:  City Clerk 

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

Above space for Recorder’s Use 

ITEM 4C
3 of 6



AGREEMENT 

 

1. Fair Share Allocation.   In consideration of the benefits Owner’s property will receive 

from the Public Improvements, including enhancement of development potential and 

municipal services, Owner agrees that the share of the costs properly allocated to Owner 

based on the percentage of acreage owned by the Owner in relation to the total amount of 

the acreage in the twenty-five parcels benefitting from the Public Improvements is the 

sum of $73,923 in accordance with Ordinance 466 plus interest as hereinafter provided 

(“Owner’s Fair Share Allocation”). 
 

2. Payment.   The Owner shall pay Owner’s Fair Share Allocation to the City in agreement 

with the terms follows:  

Owner shall pay the City, in lawful money of the United States and at the location 

specified in Paragraph 10 of this Agreement, Owner’s Fair Share Allocation with 

interest in like lawful money from the Effective Date of this Agreement at the 

California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rate on the amounts of 

principal sum remaining unpaid from time to time. As of the Effective Date of 

this Agreement, the LAIF rate is approximately 0.3% per annum and will 

probably change from time-to-time. Payments of principal and interest shall be 

made in no more than twenty semi-annual installments due no later than 5:00 p.m. 

Pacific Standard Time on December 31 and June 30 of each year commencing in 

accordance with Ordinance 466 and continuing thereafter until paid in full. Each 

payment shall be credited first on interest and the remainder on principal, and 

interest shall thereupon cease on the principal so credited. Each payment shall be 

no less than $3,696.15 plus accrued interest except for the first, which may vary 

depending upon the date the payment periods begin. First payment shall be due 

upon economic use or development of the parcel. Owner shall have the right to 

prepay all or any portion of Owner’s Fair Share Allocation at any time, without 

penalty.  

3. Default And Remedies.  
 

Owner’s Fair Share Allocation will become due and payable immediately, 

without presentment, demand or notice, if Owner (a) fails to make the required 

principal and interest payments when due, (b), becomes insolvent, (c) files a 

petition in bankruptcy, either voluntarily or involuntarily, (d) institutes any 

proceeding under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws relating to the relief of 

debtors, or (e) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors. In any such event, 

Owner waives demand, presentment for payment, protest and notice. Each such 

event shall constitute an “Event of Default” in which case the City shall be 

entitled to exercise any remedy available to the City in law or in equity.  

 

ITEM 4C
4 of 6



4. Covenants Run With The Land. All terms, provisions, and obligations contained in this 

Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, successors and 

assignees, and all other persons or entities acquiring all or any portion of the Property, or 

any interest therein, whether by operation of law or in any other manner whatsoever. All 

of the provisions of this Agreement shall constitute covenants running with Owner’s 

Property pursuant to applicable law, including but not limited to, Section 1468 of the 

Civil Code. Owner agrees that the covenant to pay the Owner’s Fair Share Allocation of 

the cost of the off-site Public Improvements is for the benefit of the Property and is a 

burden upon such Property, runs with the property, and is binding upon each successive 

owner during ownership of such Property, or any portion thereof, and each party having 

any interest in the Property derived in any manner until such time as this Agreement 

terminated as provided in Section 5 of this Agreement. 
 

5. Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement shall terminate upon receipt by the City of 

Owner’s payment in full of Owner’s Fair Share Allocation.  
 

6. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties and    

supersedes all prior negotiations, correspondence understandings and agreements by or 

between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be 

amended except upon written consent of both parties. 
 

7. Waiver. Any waiver at any time by any party of its rights with respect to default or any 

other matter arising in connection with this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a 

waiver with respect to any other default or matter. 
 

8. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California 

and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California. 
 

9. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any legal or equitable proceedings for enforcement of 

any terms of this Agreement, or any alleged dispute, breach of, default or 

misinterpretations in connection with any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 

party in such action, or the non-dismissing party where dismissal occurs other than by 

reason of a settlement, shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs and expenses 

including without limitation, reasonable attorney’s fees and costs paid or incurred in good 

faith. 
 

10. Notice,  Any notice relating to this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 

deemed sufficiently given and served for all purposes when delivered personally or by 

generally recognized overnight courier service, or four business days after deposit in the 

United States mail certified or registered, return receipt requested with postage prepaid 

addressed as follow: 
 

To City: 

   City of Colfax 

   33 South Main Street 

   P.O. Box 702 

   Colfax, CA 95713 

   Attention: City Manager 

ITEM 4C
5 of 6



 

  To Owner: 

   __________________ 

   __________________ 

   __________________ 

   __________________ 

 
 

11.  Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution by the City 

and shall remain in full force and effect until terminated. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement with the intent to be bound 

thereby as of the effective date set forth above. 
 

        (“City”) 
 

        City of Colfax 

 

 

        By: ____________________ 

               Mark Miller, City Manager 

               Date: 

 

 

        (“Owner) 

 

        By: _____________________ 

 

        Its:  _____________________ 

        Date:  

ITEM 4C
6 of 6



 

 

 

 

 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney  

DATE: November 18, 2015 

SUBJECT: Introduction and First Reading of Ordinance № 527: An Ordinance Of The City Of 
Colfax Amending Section 2.04.020C Of The Colfax Municipal Code Regarding Filling 
Vacancies On The City Council 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT: N/A FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Introduce Ordinance № 527 for first reading by title only and schedule for 
second reading, public hearing and adoption at the December 9, 2015 regularly scheduled City Council 
meeting. 
 

 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION:   

Colfax Municipal Code §2.04.020C requires vacancies on the City Council to be filled by appointment within 

30 days of commencement of the vacancy.  If a vacancy is not filled within that 30 day period, the Council 

must call a special election to fill the vacancy. If a special election is called, it is held on the next regularly 

established election date not less than 114 days from the call of the special election. 

California Government Code §36512 allows the Council 60 days instead of 30 days to fill a vacancy before a 

special election must be called. The Colfax City Council has been required to fill a number of vacancies in the 

past several years. Although the Council has always met the 30 day deadline, notifying the public of the 

vacancy, recruiting candidates, conducting interviews and making the appointments within 30 days has 

been challenging. Increasing the time for doing so will allow the Council more time to conduct the 

appointment process and remain compliant with State law. 

 

FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

There are no financial implications associated with amending this ordinance. The amendment, if adopted, 

will increase the time for filling Council vacancies from 30 to 60 days. 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Proposed Ordinance No. 527 

ITEM 7A
1 of 3



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Ordinance № 527 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COLFAX AMENDING SECTION 2.04.020C OF 
THE COLFAX MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING FILLING VACANCIES ON THE 

CITY COUNCIL  
 

The City Council of the City of Colfax does ordain as follows:  
 

Section 1:  
Section 2.04.020C of the Colfax Municipal Code is hereby amended and restated as set forth 
in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 
 

Section 2. Superseding Provisions 
The provisions of this ordinance and any resolution adopted pursuant hereto shall 
supersede any previous ordinance or resolution to the extent the same is in conflict 
herewith.  
 

Section 3. Severability 
If any section, phrase, sentence or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, the invalid or unconstitutional 
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.  
 

Section 4.  Effective Date 
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its adoption. 
 

This ordinance shall, within 15 days after its adoption, be published or posted in 
accordance with Section 36933 of the Government Code of the State of California with the 
names of those City Council members voting for and against it. 
 

The foregoing ordinance was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Colfax duly held on the 18th day of November, 2015, and passed and adopted at a 
regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax duly held on the 9th day of 
December, 2015, by the following vote:  

 

AYES:    
NOES: 
ABSENT:     
ABSTAIN: 
        ______________________________ 
        Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:     ATTEST:  
 
_________________________________    ___________________________________ 
Alfred Cabral, City Attorney     Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 7A
2 of 3



Ordinance  
 

Attachment A 
 
 
 
Title 2, Chapter 2.04, Section 2.04.020C of the Colfax Municipal Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 
 
“C. If a vacancy occurs in the city council, the council shall, within thirty (30) sixty (60) days 

from the commencement of the vacancy, either fill the vacancy by appointment or call a 
special election to fill the vacancy. The special election shall be held on the next regularly 
established election date not less than one hundred fourteen (114) days from the call of 
the special election. A person appointed or elected to fill a vacancy holds office for the 
unexpired term of the former incumbent.” 

 

ITEM 7A
3 of 3



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

FOR THE NOVEMBER 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Staff 

DATE: November 12, 2015 

SUBJECT: Solid Waste Francise - Recology 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review Current Agreement and Direct Staff as Appropriate 

 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 

The City’s current Solid Waste Franchise Agreement with Recology Auburn Placer was executed in June of 2011 to 
provide for the collection and disposal of solid waste, materials recycling, street sweeping and related services.  The 
agreement, enclosed, has been successfully operated during the ensuing years and the City has met the State’s 
regulatory requirements.  The agreement provides for a yearly cost of living adjustment of up to 4%, with a two year 
carry-over provision to future years if costs increase greater than 4% in one year.   
With the current slowly recovering economic climate, staff inquired of Recology if there was the possibility of 
eliminating or delaying the cost of living increase provided for the recent years’ contract, to minimize financial impact 
to the solid waste rate payers.  Recology has offered to consider deferral of the current rate increase for the City 
consideration of an extension to the contract term.  The current contract extends through June 30, 2021, with a five 
year automatic extension and a five year optional extension.  Solid Waste franchise agreement term lengths are 
generally extensive to amortize the cost of equipment and facility investment.  With City Council’s direction, staff 
would like to pursue the possibility of deferring an increase in rates, as well as some additional minor contract 
adjustments such as: 

 Expanded Outreach for Special Pick-up Events 

 Oil Recycling as part of the Universal Waste curbside program 

 Recycle Center at the Corp Yard - turn responsibility over to Recology to maintain 

 Organics services to business customers 

 Update brochure to include all services 

 Expanded street sweeping program 
  
Council could assign a councilmember to participate in negotiations.  Staff would bring back any tentative negotiated 
changes to the full City Council for discussion and approval. 

 
 
Attachments: 

a. Solid Waste Franchise Agreement 

ITEM 8A
1 of 43



ITEM 8A
2 of 43



ITEM 8A
3 of 43



ITEM 8A
4 of 43



ITEM 8A
5 of 43



ITEM 8A
6 of 43



ITEM 8A
7 of 43



ITEM 8A
8 of 43



ITEM 8A
9 of 43



ITEM 8A
10 of 43



ITEM 8A
11 of 43



ITEM 8A
12 of 43



ITEM 8A
13 of 43



ITEM 8A
14 of 43



ITEM 8A
15 of 43



ITEM 8A
16 of 43



ITEM 8A
17 of 43



ITEM 8A
18 of 43



ITEM 8A
19 of 43



ITEM 8A
20 of 43



ITEM 8A
21 of 43



ITEM 8A
22 of 43



ITEM 8A
23 of 43



ITEM 8A
24 of 43



ITEM 8A
25 of 43



ITEM 8A
26 of 43



ITEM 8A
27 of 43



ITEM 8A
28 of 43



ITEM 8A
29 of 43



ITEM 8A
30 of 43



ITEM 8A
31 of 43



ITEM 8A
32 of 43



ITEM 8A
33 of 43



ITEM 8A
34 of 43



ITEM 8A
35 of 43



ITEM 8A
36 of 43



ITEM 8A
37 of 43



ITEM 8A
38 of 43



ITEM 8A
39 of 43



ITEM 8A
40 of 43



ITEM 8A
41 of 43



ITEM 8A
42 of 43



ITEM 8A
43 of 43



 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

FOR THE NOVEMBER 18, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY: Amy Feagans, Planning Director 

DATE: November 12, 2015 

SUBJECT: Recommendation from Circulation Element/General Plan Committee 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UN-FUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report and Direct Staff as Appropriate 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

The Ad Hoc Circulation Committee has been meeting regularly for the past few months to discuss updates 
to the Circulation Element of the General Plan. The committee, appointed at the September 9, 2015 
Council meeting, comprised of two council members, the City Manager, the Community Services Director 
and the Planning Director has been meeting monthly since mid-September. 
 

The Committee has been tasked with developing recommendations for the Circulation Element of the 
General plan to revise those policies and implementation measures that are viewed as being obstacles to 
future development because of the subjective and restrictive nature of the language, and also to review the 
Mitigation Fee program. 
 

Discussion 
 

In 2008/2009, the City hired Fehr and Peers, a transportation engineering firm, to prepare a background 
report update of the Circulation Element. The committee reviewed this report and found that it provided 
some good discussion points and in particular, included a recommended rewrite of policy 3.5.1.2. This 
(existing) policy states that the City shall “maintain a level “C” service standard for City intersections and 
roadways.”  This language often presents a challenge for new development as the mitigation required to 
maintain this level of service is cost prohibitive or simply not manageable and could result in substantial 
adverse impacts on the character of the community, such as removal of significant community features and 
buildings that would be required to widen streets. 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 8B
1 of 2



 

Page 2 

 

The committee discussed options to update this policy including: 
 

1. Prepare a significant update of the Circulation Element to recognize current practices in 
transportation planning and develop appropriate mitigation policies as necessary. 
 

This would require significant staff work and the level of environmental work necessary to be in 
compliance with CEQA would most likely require services of outside consultants. Additionally, an 
update of the Circulation element may also trigger some level of update to the Land Use element as 
the two must be internally consistent by state law. 

 

2. Amend the Circulation element and rewrite policy 3.2.1.2 (and other policies as may be appropriate) 
to be less restrictive and to include more flexible language. 

 

This would also require some environmental determination but could most-likely be completed in 
house by current staff. A review (a possible minor amendment) of the Land Use element to ensure 
internal consistency would also be required. 

 

3. Leave the current policy language as is and  develop additional mitigation language that could 
provide further direction and interpretation to guide new development 

 

This may or may not require any environmental work depending on the language and policy 
direction it provides. 

 

It was decided that no. 2 above – a simple amendment to the Circulation Element to rewrite the policy was 
the best option as it could primarily be accomplished in house with the least amount of time. The revised 
policy language would not only allow for a more appropriate level of service such as “E” or “D”, but could 
also include language that would allow the Council to consider grant exceptions to these service levels if 
certain factors (such as economic benefits, community character , severity of congestion, etc.) are present. 
 

It was decided that the policy language previously recommended in the 2009 draft report was still valid and 
appropriate: 
 

Revised Policy 3.2.1.1: The City shall “strive to maintain a minimum level LOS D” at all 
intersections.  

 

Using “strive” instead of “shall” provides the flexibility to encourage new development and street 
improvements while still ensuring that necessary mitigation and improvements will be required as part of 
the new development.   
 

Recommendation 
 

Staff recommends the City Council review and discuss the proposed language and provide direction as 
appropriate. Next steps may include holding a public workshop to gather comments on the proposed 
language and direct staff to prepare the necessary amendments to the existing General Plan and to prepare 
the associated environmental documentation to process the amendment.   

 

ITEM 8B
2 of 2


	00A 151118 Agenda
	04A Minutes
	151028 Minutes
	Letter to the City Council

	04B Cash Summary October for Web
	2016-04 Staff Report Cash Summary Oct 2015
	October Cash Summary Data

	04C Whitcomb Fair Share Agreement
	Whitcomb Fair Share Agmnt Parcel F 11-18-15
	Map of Whitcomb Ave
	Whitcomb Fair share agreement final

	07A Ordinance 527 Filling Council Vacancy
	151103 Ord 527 Council Vacancy
	Ordinance Number 527 Cover Amending Filling Council Vacancy
	Ordinance 527 Text

	08A Recology Update
	Solidwaste Franchise Agreement Update SR
	110627 Recology Solid Waste Franchise

	08B Circulation Element Comm Update 11-18-15



